ALASKA STATE LEGQ SLATURE
HOUSE STATE AFFAI RS STANDI NG COVMM TTEE
April 9, 2015
8:07 a.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representative Bob Lynn, Chair
Representative Wes Keller, Vice Chair
Representative David Tal erico
Representative Liz Vazquez
Representative Loui se Stutes
Representati ve Max G uenberg

Represent ati ve Jonat han Krei ss- Tonki ns

VEMBERS ABSENT
Al'l nenbers present
COW TTEE CALENDAR

HOUSE JO NT RESCLUTI ON NO. 22

Urging the Canada Border Services Agency to keep the border
bet ween Hyder, Alaska, and Stewart, British Colunbia, open 24
hours a day.

- MOVED HIR 22 OQUT OF COW TTEE

HOUSE BI LL NO. 180
"An Act establishing the second Sunday of June each year as
Children's Day."

- MOVED HB 180 QUT OF COW TTEE

CS FOR SENATE BILL NO 6(FIN)

"An Act exenpting the state from daylight saving tineg;
petitioning the United States Departnent of Transportation to
change the tine zones of Alaska; and providing for an effective
date."

- HEARD & HELD
PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON
BILL: HIR 22

SHORT TITLE: STEWART- HYDER BORDER HOURS
SPONSOR('s): REPRESENTATI VE(s) ORTI Z

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -1- April 9, 2015



04/ 02/ 15
04/ 02/ 15
04/ 09/ 15

H) READ THE FI RST TIME - REFERRALS
H) STA
H) STA AT 8:00 AM CAPI TOL 106

NN N

Bl LL: HB 180
SHORT TITLE: JUNE 1 AS CHI LDREN S DAY
SPONSOR('s): REPRESENTATI VE(s) MUNOZ

04/ 02/ 15 (H) READ THE FI RST TIME - REFERRALS
04/ 02/ 15 (H) STA
04/ 09/ 15 (H) STA AT 8:00 AM CAPI TOL 106

BILL: SB 6
SHORT TI TLE: ELI M NATE DAYLI GHT SAVI NG TI ME
SPONSOR(s): SENATOR(s) MACKI NNON

01/ 21/ 15 (S) PREFI LE RELEASED 1/9/ 15

01/ 21/ 15 (S READ THE FI RST Tl ME - REFERRALS

01/ 21/ 15 (S STA, FIN

02/ 10/ 15 (S) STA AT 9: 00 AM BUTROVI CH 205

02/ 10/ 15 (S) Moved SB 6 Qut of Conmittee

02/ 10/ 15 (S) M NUTE( STA)

02/ 11/ 15 (S) STA RPT 5DP

02/ 11/ 15 (S DP: STOLTZE, COGHI LL, HUGA NS, MCGU RE,
W EL ECHOWBKI

02/ 24/ 15 (S) FIN AT 9: 00 AM SENATE FI NANCE 532

02/ 24/ 15 (S Departnents: Environnmental Conservation
and

03/ 03/ 15 (S FIN AT 9: 00 AM SENATE FI NANCE 532

03/ 03/ 15 (S Departnents: Environnmental Conservation
and

03/ 04/ 15 (S FIN RPT CS 5DP 2NR NEW TI TLE

03/ 04/ 15 (S DP: KELLY, MACKINNON, M CClI CHE, BI SHCP,
HOFFMVAN

03/ 04/ 15 (S) NR: DUNLEAVY, OLSON

03/ 11/ 15 (S) TRANSM TTED TO (H)

03/ 11/ 15 (S) VERSI ON: CSSB 6( FI N)

03/ 12/ 15 (H) READ THE FI RST Tl ME - REFERRALS

03/ 12/ 15 (H) STA

03/ 16/ 15 (H) FI N REFERRAL ADDED AFTER STA

04/ 02/ 15 (H) STA AT 8: 00 AM CAPI TOL 106

04/ 02/ 15 (H) -- MEETI NG CANCELED - -

04/ 09/ 15 (H) STA AT 8: 00 AM CAPI TOL 106

W TNESS REG STER

HOUSE STA COW TTEE

- 2- Apri |

9, 2015



REPRESENTATI VE DAN ORTI Z

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: As prine sponsor, presented HIR 22.

MAI LY M RAMONTES

I ntern

Representative Cathy Minoz

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Present ed HB 180 on behal f of
Representati ve Munoz, prime sponsor.

SENATOR ANNA MACKI NNON

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: As prime sponsor, presented SB 6.

ERIN SHI NE, Staff

Senat or Anna MKi nnon

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Ofered information on SB 6 on behalf of
Senat or MacKi nnon, prime sponsor.

DONALD WESTLUND
Ket chi kan, Al aska
PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to SB 6.

SCOTT YAHR

d ennal | en, Al aska

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Testified on behalf of hi nsel f in
opposition to SB 6.

RON PHI LEMONOFF
St. Paul Island, Al aska
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB 6.

PAULA RAK

W angel |, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to SB 6.
DUSTI N ADAMS, Board Chair

Expl ore Fai r banks

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to SB 6.

QUS K. WAHL

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 3- April 9, 2015



Di|li ngham Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB 6.

DARW N Bl VER
Anchor age, Al aska
PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to SB 6.

DAVI D MElI SMER

Sal cha, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on behalf of hinself in support
of the elimnation of Daylight Saving Tinme proposed under SB 6.

Rl CH SAYERS
Anchor age, Al aska
PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to SB 6.

PATTI MACKEY, President/CEO

Ket chi kan Vi sitors Bureau

Ket chi kan, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to SB 6.

RACHEL PETRO, CEO

Al aska State Chanmber of Conmerce

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to SB 6.

ROSI E ROPPEL
Ket chi kan, Al aska
PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to SB 6.

LYNN WLLIS
Eagl e River, Al aska
PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB 6.

CRAI G FI SHER
Anchor age, Al aska
PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to SB 6.

CHELSEA GOUCHER, Executive Director

Ket chi kan Chanber of Commerce

Ket chi kan, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to SB 6.

TOM W LLI AMS, Financial Oficer

Ward Air

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to SB 6.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -4- April 9, 2015



ACTI ON NARRATI VE
8:07:42 AM

CHAIR BOB LYNN called the House State Affairs Standing Conmmittee
nmeeting to order at 8:07 a.m Representatives Keller, Stutes

Talerico, and Lynn were present at the <call to order.
Representatives G uenberg, Kreiss-Tonkins, and Vazquez arrived
as the nmeeting was in progress.

HIR 22- STEWART- HYDER BORDER HOURS

8:08: 07 AM

CHAI R LYNN announced the first order of business was HOUSE JO NT
RESCLUTI ON NO. 22, Urging the Canada Border Services Agency to
keep the border between Hyder, Alaska, and Stewart, British
Col unbi a, open 24 hours a day.

8:08: 38 AM

REPRESENTATI VE DAN ORTIZ, Alaska State Legislature, as prine
sponsor, presented HIR 22. He said Hyder, Alaska, is a
community of about 87 residents that sits [near the southern tip
of the Southeast Alaska "panhandle,”"] on the border of the
United States and Canada. Just across the border is the
Canadi an community of Stewart, British Colunbia (BC), which is
home to approximtely 487 residents. Prior to April 1, 2015,
there was 24-hour access through the border in both directions.
As of April 1, the border is closed from mdnight to 8 a.m, as
a result of a decision made by the Canadian Border Services
Agency (CBSA).

REPRESENTATI VE ORTI Z stated that the residents of Hyder rely on
the community of Stewart for energency services. The road al so
is the only evacuation route in the event of a tsunam or |evy
br eak. He noted that Senator Lisa Mirkowski's office and his
own office began working on the issue. He said he held a town
neeting with residents of both comunities [on March 28, 2015],
where he heard further concerns. For exanple, a large part of
Hyder's econony is based on tourism particularly bear view ng,
to which road access is necessary before 8 a.m There is also
an issue related to the access to mning, where Canadi an workers
must pass through Hyder and then back over the border to a
Canadi an m ne, and access is needed during the hours the road is
now cl osed.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 5- April 9, 2015



8:11:55 AM

REPRESENTATIVE ORTlIZ said HIR 22 asks the Alaska State
Legislature to put forward a resolution asking the CBSA to
reopen the border on a 24-hour basis, and to do so in the best
interest of the residents of both Hyder and Stewart. He noted
that at the aforenentioned neeting, there were many residents
from Stewart present, as well as those in Hyder, to express
concer ns. He said the CVSA has long-term plans to nake access
avai |l abl e across the border by nmeans of a canera that could read
identification, but HIR 22 would provide 24-access across the
border until that happens.

8:13: 06 AM

REPRESENTATI VE ORTI Z, in response to Chair Lynn, estimted that
the drive from the Cassiar H ghway to the border is about two
hour s.

CHAIR LYNN asked if anyone had thought of noving the border
station to the east side of Stewart so that residents of Hyder
and Stewart could nove back and forth wi thout a border crossing.

REPRESENTATI VE ORTI Z said he saw that idea in a letter from an
organi zation, but said he was not sure where the CBSA or US
Custons officials would stand on that proposal.

CHAIR LYNN i ndicated that that type of border was, at one point,
used between Mexico and Arizona and California. He asked M.
Otiz if he knew the current status of the borders in those
ar eas.

REPRESENTATI VE ORTI Z answer ed no.
8:14: 42 AM

REPRESENTATI VE = KELLER  asked about Representati ve Otiz
reference to a gate.

REPRESENTATI VE ORTI Z explained that the gate that is used to
cl ose the border between Hyder and Stewart conpletely crosses
t he road. He said residents of Hyder who happened to be in
Stewart past m dnight would be "l ocked out” of their country.

8:15:32 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 6- April 9, 2015



CHAI R LYNN, after ascertaining no one further wi shed to testify,
cl osed public testinony on HIR 22.

8:15:42 AM

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER noved to report HIR 22 out of committee
wi th individual recomendations and the acconpanying zero fiscal
note. There being no objection, HIR 22 was reported out of the
House State Affairs Standing Conmtt ee.

CHAIR LYNN told the sponsor he would like him to explore the
possibility of getting the actual border station noved to the
eastern side of Stewart. He suggested both Hyder and Stewart
could pay for the cost of the nove, which he ventured would not
be too great.

8:16: 26 AM
The conmmttee took an at-ease from8:16 a.m to 8:17 a.m

HB 180-JUNE 1 AS CHI LDREN S DAY

8:17:37 AM

CHAI R LYNN announced that the next order of business was HOUSE
BILL NO 180, "An Act establishing the second Sunday of June
each year as Children's Day."

8:17:41 AM

MAILY M RAMONTES, Intern, Representative Cathy Minoz, Al aska
State Legislature, presented HB 180 on behalf of Representative
Munoz, prime sponsor. She said the proposed joint resolution
woul d nmake the second Sunday of June "Children's Day." The
reason is to let Alaskan children know that Al askans think they
are inportant, care for them and value them She enphasi zed
the inportance of society taking every opportunity to |let
children know that they are the future of the country and that
"we depend on them™

M5. M RAMONTES related that she grew up in Mexico where a day in
April is set aside to celebrate children. She said the day was
filled with fun activities, and famly and friends gathered.
She said the day was significant to her; as a child she always
| ooked forward to it. She said sone of her fondest chil dhood
menories were forned on that day, and she opined that it would

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -7- April 9, 2015



be wonderful for children in Al aska to have those same, positive
menori es.

M5. M RAMONTES stated that the positive inpact of recognizing
children on a special day would be |ong-Ilasting. She stated,
"Constructive and positive nenories could contribute for a
better outcone to children's lives, and we should support any
event that could contribute to this goal." She said Children's
Day would give an opportunity to parents and nenbers of the
community to work on events that would reinforce the
relationship to children. She said the ~country already
celebrates Mther's Day in May and Father's Day in June, and
recently added an Elder's Day, and adding Children's Day would
conpl enrent those celebrations. She asked the commttee to
support HB 180.

8:20: 19 AM

CHAIR LYNN, after ascertaining no one further wished to testify,
cl osed public testinony on HB 180.

8:20:29 AM

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER noved to report HB 180 out of committee
wi th individual reconmmendations and a zero fiscal note. There
being no objection, HB 180 was reported out of the House State
Affairs Standing Commttee.

8:20: 48 AM

The commttee took an at-ease from8:21 a.m to 8:22 a.m

SB  6-ELI M NATE DAYLI GHT SAVI NG TI ME

8:22:42 AM

CHAI R LYNN announced that the final order of business was CS FOR
SENATE BILL NO 6(FIN), "An Act exenpting the state from
daylight saving tine; petitioning the United States Departnent
of Transportation to change the tine zones of Alaska;, and
providing for an effective date."

CHAIR LYNN remarked that trying to change someone's nmind on the
issue of Daylight Saving Tinme is nore difficult than getting
soneone to change his/her religion. He <characterized the
proposed | egi slation as inportant.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 8- April 9, 2015



8:23:54 AM

SENATOR ANNA MACKINNON, Alaska State Legislature, as prine
sponsor, presented SB 6. She said legislation to end Daylight
Saving Tinme has been introduced five tinmes. She indicated that
she had carried the legislation before as a Representative, and
now was carrying it as a Senator. She stated that Al askans are
passi onate about the issue - both those in favor and those in
opposi tion.

SENATOR MACKI NNON said under SB 6, as of January 1, 2017, Al aska
woul d no | onger switch back and forth [from Daylight Saving Tine
to Alaska Standard Tine], and the governor of Alaska would be
instructed to send a letter to the US Departnent  of
Transportation (USDOT) to ask it to reassess Alaska's tine zone.
She clarified that the proposed |egislation would not ask USDOT
to split tinme zones, but ask "if we're in the right tinme zone."
She said the best way to "make that case" would be to pass SB 6.

SENATOR MACKINNON related, "This bill was originally put in
place to try to save energy.” She said in Benjamn Franklin's
day, the issue was about "wax and w cks" - how |ight was burned
- but that issue does not hold true today. She said she had
sent out a poll J[entitled, "2015 Daylight Saving Time Poll,
February 7-27, 2015"]. She said the issue of Daylight Saving
has garnered a phenonenal response. She noted that when she had
carried simlar legislation as a Representative, 500 Al askans
from across the state shared different effects of Daylight

Saving Tine. In Northwest Alaska, teachers noted there was
di sruption in their classroons during test-taking tinme in the
begi nni ng of March. In Sout heast Al aska, people talked about
needi ng additional daylight for floatplane operations. She

i ndicated that healthcare providers had related issues with the
time change and people who are bipolar and wth the tinme change
having an effect on some people's sleep that was different from
jet lag. She nentioned a study done in Sweden that showed nen
had a greater risk of heart attack in the first few days com ng
out of Daylight Saving Tinme; although it was not characterized
as a direct result of switching tinme, the study showed a
"potential relationship®" to the tinme change. She said data was

available to share with the conmttee if requested. She said
Australia' s study nentioned heart attack and suicide rates. She
said, "That's what originally took ne towards |ooking at

Dayl i ght Saving Tine."

8:27:13 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -9- April 9, 2015



SENATOR MACKINNON related that she had served as the forner
executive director of Standing Together Agai nst Rape (STAR), and
she had observed "violence disproportionate to any other state

in the union." She then worked for seven years at Hospice of
Anchor age, where she saw people with higher rates of cancer and
other termnal illnesses. She said she began work with the

Al aska Suicide Prevention Council six years ago. Throughout her
work with these organizations, she said she questioned why
Alaska was always "at the wong end of some of these
statistics.” One idea is that Alaska's high rates of violence
and suicide may be connected to seasonal effective disorder and
low light levels. She nentioned second-hand snoke as an exanpl e
of an outside influence on social norns. She said she had no
hard data regarding the effects of flipping time back and forth
on suicide rates, but told conmttee nenbers that whether or not
they felt the effects of the tine changes, "there nmay be nenbers
in Al aska that do."

8:29: 26 AM

SENATOR MACKINNON tal ked about a cartoon, which she said
illustrated that for babies, animals, and farmers, Daylight
Saving Time is "outside of their norm and was not sonething
they requested; "they wake up in association when their body
tells themto wake up."

8:29:56 AM

SENATOR MACKI NNON rel ayed that the last tine she had sponsored
| egislation regarding Daylight Saving Tine, she heard from 500
people; this tine she heard from 3, 700. O those that
responded, sone were highly opposed, while others were highly in
favor. She said she nade a point to engage entities that, in
previous years, had been in opposition to the proposed change,
for exanple: The Alaska State Chanber [of Commerce], the
airline industry, and the cruise ship industry. She expl ai ned,
"I wanted to make sure that there ... [was] real consideration
for the challenges that our business community mght face ... if
we were to do this ... policy change." She reported that 78
percent of those that responded [to the aforenentioned poll]
wanted to elimnate Daylight Saving Tinme; 18.5 percent supported
keepi ng Daylight Saving Tine. In response to Chair Lynn, she
said the poll was conducted via an on-line survey.

8:31: 45 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -10- April 9, 2015



CHAIR LYNN asked the bill sponsor if she had conducted any
scientific polling on the issue.

SENATOR MACKI NNON answer ed no.

CHAI R LYNN expressed doubt that a survey has the sane validity
as a scientific poll. For exanple, he offered his understanding
that Fox News puts out surveys to "a rather targeted audi ence."”

SENATOR MACKI NNON responded that she had never clainmed the
survey had the sane validity as a scientific poll, but rather
that it was "self-selecting.” She nmentioned a survey done when
she was a Representative, which was statistically valid and
showed 52 percent of Al askans in support of the elimnation of
Dayl i ght Saving Ti ne. Referring again to the 2015 survey, she
rel ayed that [54.8] percent of the popul ation that responded was
from Southcentral Alaska; 26.5 percent was from the Interior;
and 15.1 percent was from Sout heast Al aska. She recogni zed that

the proposed bill was a policy decision that would affect
i ndi vidual s and busi nesses. As shown in the poll, the support
by region showed as follows: 74.2 percent in the Far North;
85.9 percent in the Interior; 75.7 percent in Southwest; 81.2
percent in Southcentral; and 53.7 percent in Southeast. She
said she had anticipated the majority of Southeast Al aska would
have been in opposition. She added, "And ... | believe they
represent approximtely 10 percent of the population and 15 of
the population of the survey. So, again, not statistically

valid, but certainly telling."
8:34: 07 AM

SENATOR MACKI NNON said there are concerns related to flipping
back and forth between times during the year, which include
correlations between [road] safety and vehicle collisions; work
pl ace environnments and accidents; and school attendance and a

drop in test scores. She indicated that a study showed that
| ndi ana experienced an increased cost in energy when it "went
off of Daylight Saving Tine." She said Arizona has functioned

wel | off of Daylight Saving Tine.
8:34:49 AM

SENATOR MACKI NNON said Al aska's banking conmunity has asserted
that under SB 6, it would be difficult for them to participate
in financial markets. She added, "At least the general public
has spoken about this.” She stated her belief that technol ogy
has advanced in that regard, such that people could effectively

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -11- April 9, 2015



invest and nmnage noney from Alaska, "no nmatter on Daylight

Saving Tinme or off Daylight Saving Tine." She offered for
consideration that investors invest in a world market, which
hol ds ot her chall enges. Referring to pilots concerned about

flying during the "twilight zone," she noted, "Al aska gains and
| oses so much light, so quickly, that there is a brief period of
time where that is a ... statistically valid argunent. Anywhere
from 10-21 days in the fall would be the time - in at |least the
fl oat pl ane argunent - for landing or flying."

SENATOR MACKI NNON asked the conmittee to consider the policy
decision "in howit affects people and how it affects business."

8:36:11 AM

CHAIR LYNN noted that the sponsor had nentioned a study
conducted in Sweden. He nentioned a 2012 study from the
University of Alabama that alleged that switching between
Daylight Saving Time and Standard Tine could cause up to a 10
percent surge in heart attacks. He asked Senator MacKinnon if
she was famliar with that study.

SENATOR MACKI NNON answer ed no.

CHAI R LYNN questioned how many studies nmay have been done. He
further questioned whether setting clocks back in the fall would
result in "a corresponding decrease in heart attacks.”

SENATOR MACKI NNON said she could not specul ate. She conti nued
as foll ows:

That is true for car accidents - when you plunge
people into darkness - for Al aska, because we go there
very quickly, and then we recover very quickly, too
So, when you go in, we have an uptick, and when you go
out into daylight, you have the wuptick the other
direction. But overall, some of the studies are
pointing to increase, even on the balance of it all.

CHAIR LYNN said he knows that "clocks do matter.” He related
the effects of ever-changing shifts he worked when in the U S
Arny on his circadian rhythm

8:38: 27 AM

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER rel ated his experience working a nunber of
summers in the Arctic, where he said clocks were insignificant.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -12- April 9, 2015



He enphasized his interest in "the petition that's going to
[ US] DOT. " He asked the bill sponsor to expound on the
pr ocedure. He asked if there may be other ways to "put nore
wei ght behind it."

SENATOR MACKI NNON responded that she had asked the governor to
request the U S. Departnment of Transportation to initiate a
di scussion with Al askan conmunities about Alaska's tine. She
said this would afford each region the opportunity to make its
case and for the state as a whole to determine its best tinme
zone. She said she had no interest in dividing Alaska into
multiple time zones; it currently operates on two. Senat or
MacKi nnon offered her wunderstanding that after that point, it
woul d be outside of Alaskans' hands, except to engage in that
federal process. She said Alaska would remain on Al aska
Standard Tine, which neant for five nmonths of the year, Al aska
woul d be one hour off Seattle tinme and four hours off the tine
on the East Coast, but during Daylight Saving Tinme, wthout
changing its clocks, Alaska would be two hours off Seattle's
time and five hours off the tinme on the East Coast. She said
she understands that "nost Al askans don't want that disconnect."”
She offered her understanding that the federal governnent
considers only the issue of comrerce in making a time zone
change. She continued as foll ows:

W made our case already to be on Al aska Standard
Ti me. If we're making our case after we cone off
Daylight Saving Tine, it seens to ne we'd have a new
interest in having a conversation about which tine
zone we should be on: Should we be on Al aska Standard
Time or should we do sonething else? I wouldn't
proposed to insert ny belief on Al askans; | believe
they have to nmake that decision. But that would be a
conversation that we ... may be able to back up if we
pass a resolution in support of a particular tinme zone
- if we thought it was best to stay, as a |egislature,
on Alaska [Standard] Tinme zone, we mght want to do
t hat . I f we thought we should be on Pacific Standard
. Time zone, then we could nake a case to that. But
outside of that, | don't know another way, except
engaging, as a Representative or Senator ... in the
conversation, as [US]DOTl cane forward into Alaska to
make those findings.

8:42:17 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -13- April 9, 2015



ERIN  SHI NE, Staff, Senator Anna MKi nnon, Al aska State
Legi slature, on behalf of Senator MacKinnon, prinme sponsor,
stated that the aforenentioned process with the U S Departnent
of Transportation is addressed in Section 2 of the proposed
| egi slation, which would request the governor to submt the
application 21 days after passage of SB 6. She said the process
would take six nmonths to a year for the federal process,
including neetings and a public comrent period, after which
USDOT would nmake a final recommendation as to what tinme zone
Al aska should be on or if tinme zone boundaries woul d be noved.

M5. SHINE, in response to Representative Keller's query as to
whet her there nay be a better option, said the sponsor's office
had asked Legislative Legal and Research Services to draft a

bill proposing adoption of Daylight Saving Tinme year-round;
however, the 1966 Uniform Time Act does not allow that to
happen. She clarified that the only options are to adopt
Daylight Saving Tinme or elimnate it. The proposed |egislation

would [elimnate Daylight Saving Time, thus Al aska would renmain
year-round on Al aska Standard Tine. ]

8:43:51 AM

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER expl ai ned that he was questioning whether
the effort under SB 6 was enough or whether the effort could be
enhanced, for exanple, by contacting Alaska s delegation

furthering the focus of the issue within a subcommttee, or by
knocki ng on doors. He enphasized that he was in support of what
t he sponsor was trying to acconplish.

SENATOR MACKI NNON reiterated that a resolution could be passed.
She indicated that SB 6 was the first step, and the proposed
effective date would allow anple tine to engage in the process,
so that "businesses would not be as adversely affected.”

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER directed attention to |anguage on page 2,
line 3, which asks USDOT to hold hearings, and he suggested it
could offer the option to "gather input from Al askans.™ He
expl ai ned that USDOT may bal k at being asked to hold heari ngs.

8:45:34 AM

M5. SHINE said she had asked USDOT if it had the necessary
funding to send soneone to Alaska to hold hearings, and she was
told USDOT felt it would be possible to do that. She said USDOT
"did the sanme process” in 2005 in response to Indianas
petition to change its tinme zone boundaries when it "went onto

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -14- April 9, 2015



Daylight Saving Tine." She added, "They went through the
process, and they did that then."

8:46: 37 AM

CHAIR LYNN noted that he had received "a |ot of pushback from
t he business community,” and he offered his understanding that
other nenbers of the commttee had, as well. He asked how
deeply the sponsor had vetted the business conmunity regarding
t he issue.

SENATOR MACKI NNON answered that her office had sent e-nmmils wth

specific requests. She said she had net with the cruise ship
industry; wth the broadcasters association, from both |arge and
smal|l stations; and with pilots. She indicated that she had

given these entities a heads up regarding the current neeting.
She enphasized that the issue being addressed under SB 6 was
about her constituents that had been "adversely affected by

switching their clocks back and forth." She stated that the
bill was about people. She said, "[W] didn't have a |ot of
busi nesses junp up and down about trying to change the tine
zones." She continued as foll ows:

| think that it's a fair policy discussion that the
busi ness community can be affected by this, and we
need to consider that very nuch. For me, | just
rai sed the higher issue - as we're seeing nore studies
going on regarding health - that there m ght be sone
causation effect. And |I'm not asserting that it's a
silver bullet, because it's not; |'m just saying that
there is nore. ..

SENATOR MACKI NNON said the people who approached her with the
idea for the legislation were "just tired of changing their
clocks,” felt that it was a waste of tinme to do so. She said,
"They do not understand why the governnent is in the business of

telling them when the sun cones up ... at the sanme time every
day and we change a clock to tell them so." She reiterated that
teachers in classroons witness disruption and do not understand
the need for [Daylight Saving Tine], and now there are

i ndications that show it hurts test scores. She said she thinks
the business community would support the entire nation doing
away with Daylight Saving Tinme. She said she contacted Al aska's
del egati on about the issue. She commented on the difficult
nature of addressing issues in Congress, because of the nunber
of people with differing passionate views. She said the |argest
opposition group she had identified is the retail industry and

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 15- April 9, 2015



bars and restaurants, which all benefit fromit being |ight out
after people get off work, because people spend nore when there
is daylight. She tal ked about how nuch nore energy she has with

the sumrer light, than during the dark hours of wnter. She
concluded, "It's our nature to be associated with the climte
that's around us and the sun that raises ... every norning and

sets every evening."
8:.49: 52 AM

CHAIR LYNN acknow edged that the sponsor was carrying the bill
in response to her constituents. Regarding the business
community, he stated that it seens sonebody had hired a | obbyi st
to oppose SB 6. He questioned why the business community would
spend "sonething |ike $10,000" to oppose SB 6 unless it was
"pretty inportant to them"” He added, "It's even on
[television] (TV) now."

SENATOR MACKI NNON said, "The hired canpaign to continue the
status quo is affective in generating support.” She said the
3,700 that support elimnation of Daylight Saving Tinme do not
have that luxury, but instead have her as their spokesperson.
She nentioned a chanber survey with a large group in opposition,
which she offered her understanding was self-selecting. She
said nmenbers of the Alaska State Chanber of Conmerce have
contacted her directly to inform her of the information it is
gener ati ng. She indicated that the chanber wants the conmttee
to know that its nmenbers are not unaninmous in their support or

opposition, and they believe there will be "sonme period of tine
that people wll adjust.” She said that is why the bill
proposes a year and a half for the effective date and why it
would be inportant for the bill to nove in 2015, so that

everyone has the maxi num anmount of tinme to adjust and respond.
8:52:10 AM

REPRESENTATI VE VAZQUEZ noted that nmany people had called or
witten in to her office - nost in opposition. She said the key
issue was for those who have to conmunicate with the Lower 48
for business and, under SB 6, would experience an increase in
the tinme difference to the West Coast and East Coast from one to
two hours and fromfour to five hours, respectively. She opined
that a "beautiful" solution would be if U'S. Congress [did away
with Daylight Saving Time for the entire country]. She stated
that she was currently was |eaning toward not supporting SB 6.
She suggested a resolution from the House and Senate could be
sent to Congress. Representati ve Vazquez acknow edged there

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -16- April 9, 2015



have been studies done related to Daylight Saving Tine's effect
on a person's body, and how it affects students. She suggested,
t hough, that many students have to start the school day "way too
early,” and "their natural clocks are not in tune with that."
She said she saw the nerits of the proposed |egislation, but
wondered if "we could sonehow nudge Congress."

8:54:37 AM

SENATOR MACKI NNON responded that someone has to take the first
step, and everyone is in a standoff. She stated she believes in
the people of Alaska and in the state's business comunity, and
she did not want to create a barrier between the two. She
related that Dan Cuddy, [then Chairman of the Board] of the
First National Bank Alaska, was the first person to send a
|etter of support for SB 6. She said she knows that the
busi ness community is rallying in opposition and that Al askans
are divided on the issue, but she reiterated that they are
divided "in a positive way." She stated that her overall belief
is that 52 percent of Alaskans want the elimnation, and there
is a higher representation throughout the business comunity in
opposition to the proposed |egislation. Regarding Chair Lynn's
nmenti on of |obbyists being hired, she relayed that she has been
called, "the powerful co-chair of Senate Finance." She said she
was given the position and "given a bag that had nothing in it."
She said it has been a difficult year, but opined that nothing
had happened in the Senate Finance Conmittee in which people

could not take pride. She suggested the incentive to hire
advocates may be in the belief that she sonmehow woul d use sone
perceived power in a way that was |ess than honorable. She

enphasi zed that would not be the case.

8:57:02 AM

CHAIR LYNN related that he has children living in Florida and
Indiana, and a five-hour tinme difference would neke it nore
difficult for himto talk to them

8:57:27 AM

REPRESENTATI VE VAZQUEZ clarified that no |obbyist had contacted
her - only numerous constituents.

8:57:52 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -17- April 9, 2015



SENATOR MACKI NNON expl ai ned that she needed to leave to be
present at another commttee hearing, but her staff would remain
to hear the public testinony for SB 6.

CHAIR LYNN noted that Alaska currently was in a fiscal crisis
and he questioned whether the effect under SB 6 on businesses
woul d add to that crisis.

SENATOR MACKI NNON said the business conmmunity would express its
bel i ef about the possible effect of SB 6. She opined that the
busi ness community is resilient and has been able to survive
other laws that have affected it in the past. She reiterated
that the policy decision to be nmade was about people, but the
| egi slature nust keep in mnd how such a decision nmay affect the
busi ness comunity.

8:59: 22 AM
CHAI R LYNN opened public testinony on SB 6.
8:59:41 AM

DONALD WVESTLUND corrected the bill sponsor's previous statenent
that there are currently two tinme zones in Al aska. He said in
addition to Aleutian and Al aska Standard Tinmes, Metlakatla runs
on Pacific Standard Tine. He said the elimnation of Daylight
Saving Time would nake it inpossible for him to fly from
Ketchikan to visit famly in lowa in one day. Currently, during
Al aska Standard Tinme, if he flies out in the norning, he does
not connect with the flights from Seattle eastward and has to
spend the night in Seattle; it's only when he takes a 5 p.m
flight out of Ketchikan that he can continue to Ilowa, but

arriving at mdnight. He said he would |ike the governor to
send a request to [USDOI|] to assign Alaska to Pacific Standard
Time, because "that way, everybody would be at least in line

with the Wst Coast, where we do nobst of our business.”
Regardi ng the survey, he indicated that it represents |less than
one percent of Alaska's population; therefore, "it can't be very
accurate.”

9:02:41 AM

SCOTT YAHR stated that although he manages a radio station

whi ch drives his concern regarding the proposed |egislation, he
was testifying on behalf of hinself. He urged the commttee to
vote no on SB 6. He said the current tine separation of four
hours nakes doing business [with the East Coast] tricky, but "to

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 18- April 9, 2015



have our tinmes different from winter to sumer makes doing

busi ness even nore difficult; it alienates Al askans from the
rest of the country even nore, and it wll put Alaskans at a
di sadvantage.” He said the radio he manages in Aen Allen tapes
national call-in prograns. |If the time does not change with the

rest of the country, it would have to change its programm ng
time twice a year, which would upset the station's |listeners, or
multiply the work of the station's two staff nenbers by forcing
them to record the program the day before in order to play it
back on air at the sane scheduled tinme 24 hours |ater. However,
that would nean that the station's listeners would not be able
to "engage in the national conversation that takes place on
t hese prograns.” He indicated that the proposed |egislation
woul d affect broadcasting across Alaska, which would affect
Al askans personally, because they expect prograns to air at
certain times, in alignment with the rest of the country. M.
Yahr opined that Daylight Saving Tine is "pretty nuch usel ess”;
however, as long as the mgjority of the country is partaking in
it, Alaska needs to align itself so that it does not alienate
Al askans, Al askan busi nesses, and Al askan broadcasters.

9:04: 55 AM

RON PHI LEMONOFF stated that he is involved with businesses in
Anchorage, and is also the CEO of an Al askan business. In
response to Chair Lynn, he said the business is an Al aska Native
corporation, which is involved in tourism the fisheries
i ndustry, environnmental cleanup work, teleconmunications, and
the wi nd power industry. He stated that many people living on
the west coast of Alaska, including St. Paul, Bering Sea
communities, and those on the Aleutian |Islands support the
elimnation of Daylight Saving Tinme, because they think it does

not really work as intended. He said, "In our case, it actually
wastes nore daylight than it saves ...." He stated support for
SB 6, which speaks beyond the issue of whether there is nore or
less daylight; it addresses economc interests and concerns

related to safety, health, and education.

MR,  PH LEMONOFF indicated that teachers and parents know that
children suffer every norning when they get up to go to [school]
in the dark. Further, he said docunentation shows that they do
not study well in the dark. He said he heard that health
concerns related to changi ng cl ocks has been docunented, such as
i nci dence of heart attack.

MR. PH LEMONCFF said his focus in testifying was on safety and
economi cs. He said the Pribilof Islands are "technically four

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -19- April 9, 2015



time zones away from everybody else.” Wth Daylight Saving
Time, the area is off by five tine zones. He indicated that
automatic conputer technology switches cell phones used in the
Pribilof Islands to "Adak Tinme," which is the sane as Hawaiian
Standard Ti ne. He opined that man's mani pul ation of tinme zones
has made things worse. He said the switch in tinmne two tinmes a
year decreases his productivity and nmakes him feel |ike he has a
hangover for about a week each tine. He said there are body
changes that happen when switching from a body clock to a
manmade tine zone. He said the Bering Sea is a great ocean, and
Mot her Nature releases wind onto the sea; it is the place where
the show, "The Deadliest Catch,"” is filned. He said residents
already deal with the fury of the elenents and "for us to be
forced to work in the dark arbitrarily only nmakes it nore

deadl y. " He said residents don't see the daylight sonetines
until 10 a.m or 11 a.m, and making the switch in tinme only
makes that worse. He said he had seen advertisenent by the

cruise ship industry trying to convince Al askans of the nerit of
Dayl i ght Saving Tinme; however, he thinks the industry is wong.
M. Philemonoff said he has heard the argunment that Al aska needs
to stay nearer to the tine zones of Seattle and the East Coast,

but he opined that is just "scare tactics.” He said that may
have been a concern 20 years ago, but now people have the
ability to leave a voice mail, send an e-mail, or make a wre
transfer.

9:10: 53 AM

MR. PHI LEMONOFF said other states have considered this issue.
He said Hawaii had opted out of Daylight Saving Tine, and he
offered his understanding that either Arizona or New Mxico had

done the sane. He said Washington was considering it. He
encouraged Alaska to take the lead in doing away w th Daylight
Saving Tine. He said he did not have the noney to pay for a
| obbyi st, but opined that |obbyists do not "speak for the
people.” He urged the commttee to listen to the people and not
“the big dollar." He reiterated that he had testified on a
personal level, as well as from the viewpoint of a business
person, and he stated that the proposed |egislation needed to be
passed in order to "go back to reality.” In response to Chair

Lynn, he confirmed that although he was involved in business, he
had testified on behalf of hinself.

9:13: 00 AM

PAULA RAK testified in opposition to SB 6. She said that in the
past, when Al aska |owered the nunber of tinme zones it had,

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 20- April 9, 2015



Sout heast Al askans, who wanted to stay on Pacific Tinme, were
told that "this was a conprom se” that would "unify Al aska."
She indicated that the Anchorage area also had to conproni se
back then, except that it gained an hour in the evening and
Juneau | ost an hour. She said the proposed legislation was
asking for further conprom se, which would put Anchorage "back
to where they started from before all this happened,” which she
stated seenmed unfair. M. Rak said the bill sponsor argues that
the proposed legislation is for health reasons, but she said she
does not agree, because she has seen studies that support that
idea and others that say a person's health is not affected by
Dayl i ght Saving Tine. She reasoned that if it were true that
Daylight Saving Tinme was detrinental to a person's health, then
so, too, would be the effect of changing tinme zones when flying
back to Alaska from Seattle or just staying up an hour |later.
She said she finds that hard to believe.

M5. RAK stated that tinme zones are set up for the conveni ence of
conmer ce. Sout heast Al aska businesses have said they do not
want to lose an hour of daylight in the evening, because it
woul d hurt their commerce, and she said that is what needs to be
consi dered. She nmentioned an amendnent to SB 6 that would all ow
time zones, such that Southeast Al aska could be on Pacific Tineg;
however, she said she had not heard a |lot of tal k about that and
had "a feeling that that'lIl just go away." She said she would
not mnd doing away with Daylight Saving Tine if there was al so
[a time zone change], because then at |[|east Southeast Al aska
woul d be on the sane tinme zone as Seattle, at |east part of the
year. She suggested that instead of petitioning the federal
governnent to elimnate Daylight Saving Tine, the |egislature
should send a resolution stating that it would like the entire
country to be unified, in ternms of Daylight Saving Tine.

9:16: 09 AM

DUSTI N ADAMS, Board Chair, Explore Al aska, nanmed the follow ng
visitor activities that take advantage of the extended daylight
in the evenings: flight seeing, float plane trips, fishing,
wildlife view ng, hiking, and touring. He said the elimnation
of Daylight Saving Tinme would have an adverse econom c inpact on
touri sm businesses that conduct evening activities, especially
in the waning hours in August and Septenber, which he said are
anong the busiest nonths for the tour industry.

9:17:12 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -21- April 9, 2015



@QUS K WAHL stated his support of SB 6. He said, "Southeast, of
course, would like to keep ... the situation the way it is,
because they're on natural tinme, and that's what we would |ike
to have, is to be on natural tinme." He said he operates a
business in D llingham and "because two o' clock in the norning
is mdnight," he feels like he has to keep working to take
advant age of the daylight in the evenings, which makes himtired
in the nornings. He stated that he could not get used to "being
out of synch with nature.” He said the testifier from the
Pribilof Islands "pretty nmuch covered ny way of thinking."

9:18: 47 AM

DARW N BI VER specified that although he owns a bar in Anchorage
and is the chairman of the Al aska Cabaret, Hotel, Restaurant and
Retailer's Association, Inc. ("Alaska CHARR'), he was testifying
on behalf of hinself. He said in 1972, he was an area bi ol ogi st
for the Al aska Departnent of Fish & Gane (ADF&S and managed the

Bristol Bay commercial fishery. During that year, tine zones
wer e changed: Sout heast ran on Pacific Standard Tine; Yakutat
ran on "Yukon Tine"; Anchorage ran on Alaska Standard Tine; and
then there was "Aleutian Tine." He said it was problematic,
because the time zone between the Aleutian Tine and Al aska Tinme
"cane right down through the mddle of Bristol Bay." He
explained this nmeant half of his field canps were in one tine
zone, while the other half were in another. He continued as
fol |l ows:

Vell, we had radi o schedul es back then that we had to

call in our escapenent count so, as biologists, we

could open and close the commercial fishery so we had
proper managenent of that fishery. This caused a |ot
of problens because they al so overlapped with the Cook
Inlet field canp schedules. So, it was very confusing
because fisherman who were going to transfer from one
district within Bristol Bay to another district had a
48- hour waiting period. Vell, which tine zone were
they in? It got very, very conplicated. |f Southeast
did nmove and the vertical demarcation between
different tine zones went down through Southeast, this
could cause a lot of trouble with our fisheries there
as well. So, | think this is a problem that really
needs to be addressed. W are conpletely against
doing away with the Daylight Saving Tine.

MR. BIVER said the business community in which he currently
works deals with outdoor activities, including golf courses,

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -22- April 9, 2015



flight seeing, sport fishing <charters, paragliding, "zip-
lining,” bars and restaurants with sun decks, and wld life
Vi ew ng. Many busi nesses contact businesses outside of Al aska
to get assistance wth conputers, speaker installation, or
nmechani cal device repair, and the elimnation of Daylight Saving
Time would nmake it nmore difficult to contact those businesses.
He said the general public enjoys outdoor activities, as well.

MR. BIVER noted that in 2015, Daylight Saving Time runs from
March 8 to Novenber 1. He said the biggest argunment for getting
rid of Daylight Saving Tine is that Al aska has plenty of |ight
al r eady. He said that is true in the latter weeks of June
through the early weeks of July. He opined, "W shouldn't be
getting rid of this just because people are too lazy to change

their clocks." He indicated that people would change their
m nds about doing away wth Daylight Saving Tinme once they
realized how negatively doing so would inpact businesses. He

guestioned studies that would indicate health problens related
to Daylight Saving Tine, because the one-hour difference when
flying between Al aska and Washington has not caused a |ot of
heart attacks. He concluded, "I'm conpletely against this; |
think it should be stopped right where it is.”

9:24: 05 AM

DAVI D MEI SMER said he is a 40-year resident of Al aska testifying
on behalf of hinself in support of the elimnation of Daylight
Saving Tinme, because he opined it is ridiculous, stressful, and
confusing to have to change clocks twi ce a year. He said that
in Mnnesota, he has a business, apartnents, property, and
famly, and he sees no problem in elimnating Daylight Saving
Ti me. He stated his belief that other states would follow He

concluded, "I believe one hour difference in Al aska, one way or
t'other, w thout having to change that twce a year - | believe
people will get used to that and work with it. | know | wll; |
can."

9:25:48 AM

RI CH SAYERS testified in opposition to SB 6, because he said it
woul d create hardship on his business. He relayed that he is
t he general manager of a golf course in Anchorage. He said the
proposed legislation would affect all activities for which
daylight after work is a necessity, whether that is soneone's
busi ness or personal activity, such as hiking a trail. He said
the busiest tine for the golf course is in the evening, "after
wor k" - the busiest hour being from 5:00 p.m to 6 p.m He

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 23- April 9, 2015



expl ai ned that under SB 6, "those people that are playing golf

at 5:30 p.m wuld still be at work at 4:30 p.m, and that
busi est hour woul d be taken away." He said he could not inmagine
how businesses, such as The Lucky Wshbone, J.C.  Penny,
ConocoPhillips Al aska, Inc., would survive, with their busiest
hour taken away. He said he estinmates over $230,000 lost in

revenue for the golf course and facility. He said the facility
has devel oped a Wacky Wnen Executive Wek, for which it has
garnered national awards, and, under SB 6, participants in the
event woul d have one hour less to play, which would result in "a
severe drop-off." He said local vendors would suffer from the
golf course's |lack of revenue, because he would spend | ess noney
on them and throughout the Anchorage econony. M. Sayers said
he enploys 120 throughout the sumer, but if he lost that
revenue and the tinme for people to enjoy the facility, he would
have fewer jobs to offer. He said he also interacts wth
several conpanies on the East Coast, such as clothing vendors
and a software provider. Currently, comunications with them
must be made before 1 p.m; under SB 6, that would be one |ess
hour . He said visitors from everywhere cone to play golf under
the m dni ght sun, and they go on cruises, rent cars, and stay in
hotels. That could not happen if there is no m dni ght sun.

9:29:24 AM

MR. SAYERS indicated that when he saw that the proposed
| egi slation had passed [the Senate], he spoke with people who
said they supported getting rid of Daylight Saving Tinme, and
alnost all of them - once they realized how they would | ose an
hour of light in the evening, during which they could be wal ki ng
their dogs, cooking outdoors, and play sports - changed their
m nds. He said he thinks that would also be the case if that
information had been part of the survey and people taking the
survey realized how things would change. He said, "The fal
woul d experience a three-week change. The daylight we have on
Septenber 15th would then becone the daylight on August 26th."
He said all the activities that occur in the evening "would take
a three-week hit." He warned that the proposed |egislation
woul d have a negative effect on the state's econony, which he
said the state could not endure at this point in its history.

9:31: 25 AM
PATTI MACKEY, President/CEOQ Ketchikan Visitors Bureau (KVB),
noted that KVB had sent a resolution to the commttee to express

concerns about the proposed |egislation. In response to a
previous testifier's reference to the cruise industry, she said,

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 24- April 9, 2015



"The cruise lines will do what the cruise lines will do." She
stated, "But when over 93 percent of businesses in Ketchikan
that cater to the tourism trade are residents of the state of
Al aska or Ketchikan, it is a very big concern to my comunity."
She said Ketchikan's wunique problem regarding the proposed
| egislation is not so nuch about the tinme zone as it is about

“"the time in hours away." She said SB 6 would put Ketchi kan at
a disadvantage in securing the tourist trade from visitors that
are on ships that are |eaving Al aska. She explained that 50

percent of the ships that visit Ketchikan are doing so at the
end of their voyage, and under SB 6, those ships would have to
| eave one hour earlier. Based on l|ast year's figures, she
estimated that Ketchikan could lose $9 million, just in sales of
products and services; that figure does not include nmunicipal
sal es tax and other revenues that would be lost as a result of a
shorter port stay. She relayed that in 2016 and beyond, there
woul d be an increase in the nunber of people visiting Ketchikan.
She concluded, "This is ... a very serious concern to the
busi ness econony of Ketchikan, and | would just wurge the
committee to please keep that in consideration as you consider
this bill."

RACHEL PETRO, CEO, Alaska State Chanber of Comrerce (ASCO),
rel ayed that ASCC represents businesses throughout the state and
is the only industry association that represents every industry
sector in the state. She said ASCC also represents alnost 40
| ocal chanbers of comrerce throughout Al aska, and it serves as
representative to the National Association of Manufacturers in
Al aska.

M5. PETRO said the purpose of ASCC is to create a viable and
thriving econony in Alaska; therefore, its nenbers are focused
on policies that support that goal. She indicated she had al so
sent a letter to the conmttee. She stated that businesses are
not currently experiencing a problem with Daylight Saving Tine.
She expl ained that she knew that because each year ASCC asks its
menbers what issues need to be addressed as a statew de business
community, and Daylight Saving Tinme is not an issue that is

rai sed. She surmsed that the reaction to the proposed
| egi sl ation being heard today was because "changing will have an
effect.™ She said, "W wouldn't be here unless this ... had

been brought up."

M5. PETRO stated that in 2009, ASCC surveyed its business
menbers, and over 70 percent of them did not support a change
[to Daylight Saving Tine]. Today, ASCC still does not support
"moving Al aska further away and changi ng those tine zones." She

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -25- April 9, 2015



said ASCC would be "very supportive" of a national change. She
said not every business would be affected equally; therefore,
sone businesses would not be weighing in on the proposed
| egi sl ation. She stated ASCC s belief that [the negative
effects of] elimnating Daylight Saving Tinme would outweigh any
potential benefits.

9:37:19 AM

M5. PETRO referred to Ms. Mackey's testinony about the potenti al
loss of $9 mllion a year, and said Ketchikan is expecting even

nore visitors this year, so that could be a serious inmpact. She
rem nded the commttee that this nunber was in regard to |ocal
busi nesses - not the cruise ship industry. She surm sed that

everyone who had testified would be fine with a nationw de
elimnation of Daylight Saving Tinme, but she reiterated that
ASCC opposes SB 6.

9:38:42 AM

ROSIE ROPPEL stated that she has lived in Ketchikan since 1954,
before Alaska was a state and before Ketchi kan separated from
Pacific Standard Tinme. She stated that she has been an educat or
for 35 years in Ketchikan. She explained that although she was
testifying on behalf of herself, her observations working wth
students in schools and parents after school has something to do
with her opposition to the proposed elimnation of Daylight
Saving Time in Al aska. She pointed out that Ketchikan is 700-
plus mles from Anchorage, south in latitude, and "nmore in
| ongitude with Seattle.” She indicated that back when Al aska
had been on the sanme tinme as the Pacific Coast, sunset was at
9:30 p.m After switching to Alaska Standard Tine, [during
Daylight Saving Tine] the sunset is at 8:30 p.m Under SB 6,
sunset would be at 7:30 p.m She said that is a lot of tine to
| ose. She stated, "Little kids are going to be wal king honme in
t he dark."

M5. ROPPEL, regarding the concern about health, said she knows

that kids like to start school later and stay up later. She
said, "lI'm a secondary and university |evel teacher, and | know
that that does affect test scores. W also know that food,
prior to taking a test affects test scores.” She stated her
belief that "any study can prove anything you want," but

educators know that it has been proven repeatedly that children
really need to go to school later, but because of bus schedul es
and other factors, that does not happen. She said she is "like
the Anchorage people that Ilike to recreate outside.” She

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 26- April 9, 2015



specul ated that nost Al askans do. She said she knows that the
people living in Alaska's rail belt and in Bristol Bay don't
experience the sane issues with light that people in Ketchikan
do.

9:41: 13 AM

M5. ROPPEL said although she understands the business standpoint
of having one tine zone, she would |like see Southeast Al aska's
70,000 be put back on Pacific Standard Timne. She reiterated
that she would |ike Ketchikan to [continue to wuse Daylight
Saving Tine].

9:42: 09 AM

LYNN WLLIS, testified in support of SB 6. He said five simlar
bills had been introduced in previous |legislatures, since 1999,
but despite sone legislative progress, all of them were "held to
death” before various commttees, "where hearing a fina
commttee decision was denied." He questioned what other state
i ssue had been so vetted over tinme. He continued as foll ows:

Now, after all that inquiry, what is the clear and
conpelling reason to force the entire state popul ation
of Alaska - except for those residing in the
Hawai i an/ Al eutian time zone, to change the tinme of day
twice each year and deal with what anounts to state-
mandated jetlag. Only energy savings are nentioned as
a public benefit Congress found would be seen by using
Dayl i ght Saving Tine. Any other public benefit is

described by using the words "may" or "should."” \What
energy savings, due to the use of Daylight Saving
Time, are being realized by Al askans? If they were

there, you would have heard it. Dayl i ght Saving Tine
is not intended primarily to enhance commerce; tine
zones are intended to enhance commerce, and SB 6
allows for that discussion. Al askans must pursue
their endeavors when their efforts are required;
therefore, how can you, with any sense of fairness,
favor one profession or practice over another by
forcing an entire state population to support what
arguably anobunts to the personal conveni ence or
financial benefit of a few You cannot nmke a period
of daylight any longer by sinply changing the tine of
day. Renmenber : for every hour you delay sunset, you
equal ly delay sunrise the next nmorning. Morning |ight
is just as inportant to sone Al askans as evening |ight

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -27- April 9, 2015



is to others. Besides, we live in the land of the
m dni ght sun, where naturally changing daylight
qui ckly offsets any artificial delay in the time of
sunset.

Al aska's constitution grants the right of privacy, so
how can you be affording Al askans that constitutional
right when you insist that the state governnent enter
their hone at 2 a.m, twice each year, to force them
to change the time of day for no clear conpelling
reason? So, after seeing all the private efforts, ny
optimsmis jaded. | request you nove this bill from
your committee or offer a specific justification of
why you won't. Thank you.

9:44: 53 AM

CRAIG FISHER specified that although he is a snall business
owner, he was testifying on behalf of hinself. He expl ai ned
that he canme before the commttee in person to show how
inmportant the issue is to him and because the real-tine
interaction regarding SB 6 is inportant. He said that is what

drives his opposition to SB 6. He explained that he has
custoners, vendors, and partners all over the country, and
interacting with themin real tinme is inportant. \Wen he shows
up at work at 8:30 a.m, it is already 12:30 p.m in New York,
which | eaves about four hours - a concentrated tine - to do
business with those on the East Coast. He said he has staff
that have to be ready to take on line training at 4 a.m,

because it starts at 8 a.m on the East Coast. He said [w thout
Daylight Saving Tine], a 3 a.m start tine wuld be necessary,

and is "just one thing worse." He indicated that he would
support the entire country doing away w th Daylight Saving Tine.
He said, "I want to see that we stay in synch, as closely as
possible, with the rest of the country.” | don't want to have
to look at a calendar to find out what tine it is in Seattle,
and - nore inportantly - | don't want ny business partners in
New York to have to do the sane.” In response to Chair Lynn,

M. Fisher said he owns a consulting firm
9:47: 45 AM

CHAIR LYNN noted that there were seven others waiting to
testify, but he wi shed to pause to nmake sone comments about SB
6. He opined that there had been interesting testinony about an
important bill, with a ot of ramfications. He noted that [the
first half of the Twenty-Ninth Legislative Session] was alnost

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 28- April 9, 2015



at an end. He stated his intention to appoint a subconmttee to
dig nore deeply into the issue during the interimand return to
it in January.

9:49: 24 AM

CHAIR LYNN, after conferring with both mnority nmenbers on the
commttee, appointed the following nenbers to a subcommttee on
SB 6: Representati ve Kreiss-Tonkins, Representative Keller, and
Representative Vazquez, wth Representative Keller as vice
chair. He invited anyone else on the House State Affairs
Standing Conmittee to partici pate.

9:50: 20 AM

CHELSEA GOUCHER, Executive Director, Ket chi kan Chanber of
Comrerce, testified in opposition to SB 6. She stated concern
that with the passage of SB 6, when the rest of the country
shifts to Daylight Saving Tinme, Al aska would be two hours behind
Seattl e, and sout hbound crui se ships would have to | eave an hour
earlier to achieve parity with Pacific Daylight Tine. She
echoed the testinony of M. Mackey that as a result, Ketchikan
could lose $9 mllion. Further, she expressed concern that when
the rest of the country returned to Standard Tine, it would
conplicate comunications - particularly the scheduling of
t el econferences and appoi ntnents. She said businesses in Al aska
m ght have to shift their start tinmes to earlier in the day for
half the year, and then switch back, in order to not |ose
valuable time with partners on the East Coast.

M5 GOUCHER said under SB 6, sunset during the summer nonths
woul d occur an hour earlier, which would detrinentally inpact
flight operations, marine charters, shore businesses, and "the
safety of shift worker transportation.” She said individuals
woul d | ose opportunities for recreational activities, and those
who depend wupon subsistence activities would suffer, both
culturally and econonically, with the earlier onset of darkness.
She said commercial fishermen would be forced to shift their
schedules to wake up by 2 am or 3 a.m, in order to maximze
their fishing tine. She warned there would be a rise in
programm ng costs for transportation, shipping, logistics, and
broadcasti ng busi nesses Muinicipal governnments, such as that in
Ket chi kan, would | ose sales tax revenue because of |osses in the
tourism sector, and "the negative trickle-dowmm effect wll
damage sales at those businesses, which support other directly
i npacted sectors.” Ms. Goucher enphasized doing all that is

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 29- April 9, 2015



possible to protect those parts of the econony that generate
revenue for the state and its people.

M5. GOUCHER said the only acceptable conpromse would be to
ensure that if Daylight Saving Tinme is repealed, Al aska would be
nmoved to Pacific Standard Tine; however, she said doing that
woul d be conplicated by the size of Al aska. She asked, "How
woul d that [enphasis on "that"] inpact Wstern Al aska?" She
said popul ations such as Anchorage, Fairbanks, Juneau, and
Ketchikan nmust be able to do business wth each other
efficiently, and making nmultiple time zones would be an "equally
nmessy proposition.” She stated that the Ketchi kan Chanber of
Commerce feels strongly that the best option for all Al askans
would be to maintain Daylight Saving Tinme and continue
operations as they currently exist. She asked the conmttee to
consider the proposed legislation carefully and oppose the
elimnation of Daylight Saving Tine.

9:53:13 AM

TOM W LLI AV, Fi nanci al Oficer, Ward Ar, testified in
opposition to SB 6. He related that he is also an owner of a
vacation rental business. He noted that Ward Air is an on-
demand charter air conpany that provides service to |ocal
peopl e, businesses, governnent, and tourists. He opined that
while the original bill version of SB 6 was harnful to Al askans,
the comnmttee substitute passed out of the Senate could do nore
harm by potentially allowng for the possibility of many tine
zones for Alaska - a decision that could be nmade by the US
Department of Transportation. He said this could "reignite a
capital nove issue."

MR. WLLIAVS said he thinks there are four critical questions to
ask when deciding whether to proceed wth the proposed
| egislation. The first question is whether elimnating Daylight
Saving Tine would get rid of the annoying practice of changing
clocks twice a year. He prefaced the second question by
remnding the conmttee that the bill sponsor had said there
really was no hard data relative to the concern about health
i ssues, and he posited that it is incunmbent upon the commttee
and the legislature as a whole not to make a significant change

that would affect all Al askans, based on no hard data. He
indicated the second question would be whether elimnating
Daylight Saving Tinme would result in healthy Al askans. He

answered probably sone, but said it also has the potential for
causing nore health issues. He said total daylight hours do not
change; the changes would be in regard to when Al aska goes to

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 30- April 9, 2015



work and gets off of work. He said gaining an hour of light in
the evening and being able to enjoy outdoor activities is not
only a benefit to businesses, but also to the health of every
Al askan. He tal ked about the effect of changing the timng of
light on those with Seasonal Affective D sorder (SAD). He said
nost people are not going to get up at 3 a.m just because it
may be light out then, because "our cycles are not geared
towards that." He stated that having as many evening hours of
daylight in the summer is a health boon.

MR WLLIAMS said the third question is: Wul d elimnating
Dayl i ght Saving Tine have adverse effects on Al askans? He said,
"Absol ut el y. You've heard those reasons over and over again."
He said there would eight nonths during which Alaska would be
"two hours out of synch with the Lower 48." He added, "And
obviously, it provides less tinme ... for business to provide
I i ght -dependent business services." He indicated the fourth

guestion had to do with whether it would be beneficial to put
Sout heast Al aska on Pacific Tine in order to alleviate "sone of
the econom c problens.” He said yes, but warned it may create
nor e. He said he knows USDOT's focus is on econonmc activity,
which he said he thinks is "a very inportant elenent of this."
He said when he first cane to Juneau, Al aska was on several
different time zones. At that tinme there was a big effort being
made to nove the capital because it was difficult to effectively
comuni cate or coordinate activities between Southcentral Al aska
and the capital in Southeast Alaska. He said he thinks it would
create a problemif the state were to end up with nultiple tine
zones.

9:57:37 AM

MR.  WLLIAMS, referring to the sponsor's remark that the
proposed legislation is based on people and businesses can
adjust, stated that "we're all Alaskans.” He stated that there
are sone |arger business interests, but he has a small business
and he is an individual. He warned against pitting individuals
agai nst busi nesses. He said, "We're all Al askans; we're trying
to make this state work to all our benefit." He echoed Chair
Lynn's coment that the state wll be facing significant
financial issues as it downsizes government. He said, "W are
going to have a double whammy if this bill passes, and not just
in Southeast, Alaska; it's going to be all over this state. | f
we were ever going to do it, now is not [enphasis on "not"] the
time; now is the worst tine." Notw thstanding that, he said if
the commttee felt conpelled to nove out sone version of SB 6,
he would recommend the bill be anended to ask USDOI to keep

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -31- April 9, 2015



Al aska on one tine zone, but to consider "whether we go to
Pacific"; and to not nmake any changes in Daylight Saving Tine
until USDOT would authorize us, as a state, to all go to Pacific
Daylight Tine."

9:59:11 AM

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER asked M. Wllians to clarify if he
t hought the capital nove effort in the past had been solely
based on the state being in different tine zones.

MR. WLLIAMS responded that his work back then had been rel ated
to legislative audits, and there were coordination issues
brought forth by nmany people. He said he was happy to see
Alaska go to "one consolidated tinme," because he said it was
good for the state. He said he would hate to see it reverted
back to a system that would divide the state again - not just
because of the capital issue, but also for "basic internal state
commerce; [the] sanme sort of ... commerce issues that we have
wi th down south."

10: 00: 29 AM

CHAIR LYNN stated that the comnmittee had run out of tinme and
woul d not hear further testinony at the present neeting.

10: 00: 38 AM

CHAI R LYNN announced that SB 6 was held over.

10: 01: 03 AM

ADJ QURNVENT
There being no further business before the commttee, the House

State Affairs Standing Conmttee neeting was adjourned at 10:01
a.m

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 32- April 9, 2015



